
SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE

(Constituted under Section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 1982)

A R Ward
Solicitor and Honorary Secretary to the Committee

Eastleigh House, 
Upper Market Street  

Eastleigh, 
Hampshire  SO50 9YN

Telephone: 023 8068 8000
Fax No:  023 8068 8122 

DATE: 31 January 2019

Friday, 8 February 2019
2pm Spitfire Meeting Room, Southampton Airport

AGENDA

Prior to the start of the meeting there will be a short session (maximum 15 
minutes in total) giving the opportunity to relevant organisations, whose 
interests are not formally represented by a committee member, to speak.  
Those wishing to participate should telephone the above number in 
advance of the meeting to book a place.

1. Apologies for absence    

2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 8) 

To consider the minutes of the meetings held on 8 June 2018 and 12 October 
2018.

3. Airport Managing Director's Report    (Pages 9 - 16) 

Including the Monitoring of the Flying Controls Agreement.

4. Noise Action Plan and Noise Desk System.    

5. Update on Masterplan     

including Airspace, planning applications and consultations.

6. Technical Working Group feedback    (Pages 17 - 22) 

Including the update on Drones.

7. Date and time of next meeting     

Next meeting would take place on the 14 June 2019 at 2pm in the Spitfire Meeting 
Room at Southampton Airport.



This page is intentionally left blank



1

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE 
COMMITTEE

Friday, 8 June 2018  (2:00 pm – 3:55 pm)

Godfrey Olson  (Chairman)
Councillor David Airey  (Vice-Chair)
Richard Ward  (Hon Secretary)

Members Present:

Councillor Janice Asman West End Parish Council
Councillor Sharon Mintoff Southampton City Council
Councillor Spiros Vassiliou Southampton City Council
Councillor Ray Dean Eastleigh Borough Council
Councillor J S Neal Test Valley Borough Council
Councillor Laurence Ruffell Winchester City Council
Neil Garwood Southampton Airport
Mr G Wilkinson Southampton Action for Access

Deputies Present:

Councillor Andy Moore Bishopstoke Parish Council
Councillor Geoff Harris Bishopstoke Parish Council

In Attendance:

Sue Owens Eastleigh Borough Council
Hayley Bull Cross Country Trains
Councillor L Fielker Southampton City Council

Apologies:

Councillor S Barnes-Andrews Southampton City Council
Councillor Paul Bicknell Eastleigh Borough Council
Councillor Jan Warwick Winchester City Council
Councillor Floss Mitchell Hampshire County Council
Councillor Rob Humby Hampshire County Council
Diane Sebon Townhill Park Residents Association
Mims Davies MP Eastleigh Parliamentary Constituency
Royston Smith MP Southampton Itchen

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR 2018/19

Godfrey Olson was elected as Chair for 2018/19.

2. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR FOR 2018/19

Councillor David Airey was elected as Vice Chair for 2018/19.

1

Agenda Item 2



2

3. APPOINTMENT OF HONORARY SECRETARY 2018/19

Richard Ward was elected as an Honorary Secretary to the Chair for 2018/19.

4. MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2018 be 
confirmed and signed as a true record. 

5. AIRPORT MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

The Managing Director of Southampton Airport International Limited, Neil 
Garwood, delivered his report which had been circulated with the agenda. 

He reported on passenger numbers and noted that there was an error in the 
figures with regards to the Reduction of Passengers and the report should 
read that there had been a 2.7% decline, not a 20% decline. 

2018 was an exciting year for the airport with new routes to Menorca with TUI 
and Skiathos with Fly LoLo. Easyjet’s Geneva flights would be re-introduced 
from December 2018 due to demand from ski passengers. In addition, 
specialist ski companies, Esprit Ski and Ski Total, would expand their 
Chambery flight programme from Southampton Airport in Winter 2018. 
Following a successful season this year, Esprit Ski and Ski Total would 
upgrade the aircraft to a larger 118 seat Embraer jet aircraft to accommodate 
higher numbers of passengers. BMI had stopped the Southampton to Munich 
route and Flybe would be reducing the amount of planes and some of their 
large jets would be removed by 2020.

Southampton Airport was delighted to announce the launch of its brand new 
training centre, EchoFour. EchoFour gave businesses from across the South 
the chance to receive the highest standard of training at a unique location. 
Each course was instructed by serving firefighters, which created an 
environment whereby ‘professional firefighters trained professional people’.

An innovative drone, Robird®, had been trialled at Southampton Airport in 
partnership with NATS and the developers, Clear Flight Solutions. Although it 
looked just like a falcon to the casual observer, it was actually an ornithopter – 
a type of drone designed and flown to mimic the actions of a bird of prey and 
used to deter real birds from airport. The successful trial meant that similar 
robot bird systems could take flight at other airports in the future.

New electric car charging points had been in use for just over a month at the 
airport and there had already been a positive environmental impact. The free 
charging bays had saved 205KW in their first five weeks of operation – 
equivalent to saving 143 kilograms of carbon dioxide emissions from the local 
atmosphere. Local drivers were encouraged to drop by, park in an available 
bay and recharge their vehicles.

Southampton Airport had warmly welcomed Baton Relay runners as part of 
the Royal Air Force’s Centenary celebrations. The airport had a great history 

2



3

with Royal Air Force and was happy to support them in their centenary 
celebrations. Southampton Airport was where the first flight of Spitfire had 
taken place back in 1936 and that history continued with modern aircrafts 
flying from the airport to various destinations. The airport was proud to 
recognise the commitment of the RAF and the work they did together.

On 24 June, the annual Runway run had taken place, with around 700 
runners taking part to raise money for the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Air 
Ambulance (HIOWAA). Southampton Airport was the only commercial airport 
in the UK that opened up its runway to the members of the public for this type 
of event and with 700 runners had broken yet another record of hosting the 
biggest run of its kind in the UK to date. Over £20,000 had been raised from 
the Runway Run, with the final number still being calculated.

6. NOISE ACTION PLAN

Amy Le Vieux, Health and Safety Officer, reported that there had been a slight 
increase in noise complaints from January to April 2018; two complaints from 
Bitterne Park, three complaints from Townhill Park and one complaint from 
Freemantle. Complaints received were still being investigated in liaison with 
various airlines and Police, as one was the police helicopter.

The Noise Action Plan was designed to aid the airport to minimise impact of 
air traffic noise on the neighbourhood area. The plan would be implemented 
on 31 August and DEFRA had already approved the plan.

7. MASTERPLAN

Neil Garwood, Managing Director, advised that they were not in a position to 
be able to report on the Masterplan as it was still with the share-holders. 

He proposed that if this was ready prior to the next arranged meeting of the 
Committee, then they would call an additional meeting. 

8. REPORT ON PASSENGERS WITH RESTRICTED MOBILITY

Hazel Screech, Customer Experience Manager, reported on passengers with 
restricted mobility and emphasised the airport’s commitment to provide the 
best service for all their passengers including the ones that require special 
assistance.

Southampton Airport had worked extremely hard to improve its services for 
passengers travelling with hidden disabilities and was very pleased that they 
had received recognition from the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) for examples 
of best practice within their recent report. Southampton Airport was one of the 
four UK airports that fulfilled all of the key requirements and recommendations 
of CAP1411 - guidance provided by the CAA in supporting people with hidden 
disabilities. In particular, the CAA praised Southampton Airport for providing a 
pre-travel advice and tips information booklet which included a detailed 
section on travelling with hidden disabilities. This information booklet was 
developed in partnership with various organisations to help guide passengers 
through the process of travelling to and from Southampton Airport.

3



4

The CAA had recommended that other UK airports follow Southampton’s 
initiative of using their special assistance “helping hands” symbol to assist 
passengers with identifying a quiet route through security and into the 
departure lounge.  Introduced in 2017, the “quiet route” was available for 
passengers with sensory impairments or sensory processing issues, for whom 
the terminal environment could sometimes be disorienting and stressful.

Last year, more than 14,800 passengers with physical and hidden disabilities 
requested assistance whilst travelling through the airport and 89% had pre-
booked special services.

Southampton Airport worked in partnership with various organisations in order 
to improve service provision for passengers, ensure that information was 
available in accessible formats and enhance training for their employees. The 
next step was to gain CRA excellences.   

9. FEEDBACK FROM ANNUAL CONFERENCE

Councillor Airey reported on the Annual Conference which he had attended 
this year. A formal report had been written and attached to the minutes. 

10. MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT

It was noted that there had been no breaches of the Flying Controls 
Agreement. 

11. TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP FEEDBACK

The minutes of the most recent meeting of the Technical Working Group were 
circulated to members with the Agenda, and were noted at the meeting.

There had been one reported laser strike, however no reported drone activity. 

With regard to the airspace, on 2 April 2018 there had been an instance 
whereby one of the tracked routes had varied slightly onto the runway; the 
airline involved had been spoken to about this.

New restrictions regarding use of drones near airports and the heights that 
they were able to fly had recently come into force. There would also be 
tougher penalties for those who targeted vehicles, including aircrafts, with 
lasers.

12. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

It was agreed that the next meeting would be held on Friday 12 October at 
2pm.

M6077

4



1

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE 
COMMITTEE

Friday, 12 October 2018  (2:00 pm – 2:41 pm)

Godfrey Olson  (Chairman)
Councillor David Airey  (Vice-Chair)
Richard Ward  (Hon Secretary)

Members Present:

Councillor Spiros Vassiliou Southampton City Council
Councillor Lorna Fielker Southampton City Council
Councillor Sharon Mintoff Southampton City Council
Councillor Ray Dean Eastleigh Borough Council
Councillor J S Neal Test Valley Borough Council
Councillor Laurence Ruffell Winchester City Council
Councillor Janice Asman West End Parish Council
Nigel Smith Tourism South East
Diane Sebon Townhill Park Residents Association
Mr G Wilkinson SPECTRUM
Phil Dominey South Western Railway
Ross Macdonald National Air Traffic Services
Neil Garwood Southampton Airport
Ray Fairhall Border Force
Nigel Spence Southampton Airport
Steve Thurston Southampton Airport

Deputies Present:

Councillor Richard Izard Winchester City Council
Councillor Anne Dean Bishopstoke Parish Council 

Apologies:

Councillor Floss Mitchell Hampshire County Council
Councillor Paul Bicknell Eastleigh Borough Council
Councillor Jan Warwick Winchester City Council
Councillor Sue Toher Bishopstoke Parish Council
Mark Millar Hampshire Chamber of Commerce 

and Industry
Steve Brine MP Winchester Parliamentary 

constituency
Mims Davies MP Eastleigh Parliamentary Constituency
Caroline Nokes MP Romsey and Southampton North 

Parliamentary Constituency
Royston Smith MP Southampton Itchen
Alan Whitehead MP Southampton Test Parliamentary 

Constituency
16. MINUTES

The minutes of the extraordinary meeting held on 18 September 2018 were 
agreed as a correct record. 5



2

It was noted that the minutes from the meeting held on 8 June 2018 had not 
yet been formally agreed; these would be considered at the next meeting. 

17. AIRPORT MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Neil Garwood, Managing Director, presented his report which covered the 
period of May to August 2018.

Passenger numbers had seen a slight decrease compared to the same period 
in 2017. The two main reasons for this were that there had been less aircraft 
movements this year and that there had been the withdrawal of a BMI flying 
route to Munich. Whilst there had been less aircraft movements, overall the 
aircrafts generally had higher numbers of passengers on them. 

Southampton International Airport had received an award for Best Use of 
Technology at the South Coast Business Awards on 13 July 2018. The 
company was praised for the use of the innovative ornithopter, Robird, which 
was used to deter real birds away from the airport and avoid bird strikes.  

This summer had seen the launch of the first flight to Greece by FlyLolo which 
had been successful and they looked forward to next year and some other 
new routes to locations that the airport had not served before. 
 
Councillor Bruce Tennent, Mayor of Eastleigh, had visited the airport to 
support and pilot the new citizenAID course. A number of companies such as 
Carnival UK and Hampshire and Isle of Wight Air Ambulance were given 
training on how to manage a situation when a significant incident occurred 
and how to administer First Aid before the emergency services arrived at the 
scene. 

Flybe had significantly boosted frequency to its 2018-19 winter schedule on 
five of its key routes from Southampton; together with an extra 28 return 
flights over the busy October and February 291 half terms and peak festive 
season to Belfast City, Edinburgh and Manchester. In total, Flybe’s 2019 
winter schedule from Southampton featured 20 routes with a choice of up to 
237 flights a week.

The airport now had two engineering apprentices in post, which was positive 
and provided invaluable experience. 

On Sunday 24 June 2018 the airport hosted yet another successful Runway 
Run; this was the most successful year yet with 700 runners that had taken 
part and raised money for the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Air Ambulance. 

The airport continued to use Social Media to provide updates and 
communicate with customers. 

18. NOISE ACTION PLAN AND NOISE DESK SYSTEM

Nigel Spence, Airside Assurance Manager, advised that the Noise Action Plan 
was with DEFRA and had been submitted before the August 2018 deadline. 

6



3

The Plan was required to be approved by DEFRA and once approved, should 
be published before Easter 2019. 

Fourteen noise complaints had been received from May to August 2018 which 
was a substantial reduction to the same period of 2017, when 26 complaints 
had been received. Complaints were reported from Bitterne, Bishopstoke, 
Colden Common, Eastleigh, Hythe, Shawford, Townhill Park and Winchester. 
Complaints had been investigated and some investigations were ongoing. 

Nigel apologised on behalf of the Airport for an engine ground run that was 
completed on a Sunday due to urgent repairs required to an aircraft; they had 
tried to ensure this did not need to happen however on this occasion it would 
have affected the flight programme quite dramatically if it had not taken place. 

There had been some recent press in relation to aircraft noise and flight 
paths, which had been responded to by the Head of Aerodrome Operations. 

There was new equipment in place which looked at noise preferred route 
deviations; a demonstration would be given at the next meeting. The 
equipment had found nine deviations across a four month reporting period. 
Three had been investigated and reviewed with Air Traffic and the Airlines in 
question. One investigation was still ongoing. There were often suitable 
reasons as to why the aircraft had deviated, for instance in one case a light 
aircraft was in flight and the commercial aircraft had to divert to avoid a 
collision. 

On 30 July 2018, new legislation had been introduced in relation to drones. It 
was illegal to fly a drone within 1km of an aerodrome boundary unless specific 
permission had been given by the airport. It was also illegal to fly a drone 
above 400ft. NATS had produced an application which drone operations could 
use to find danger zones. A further piece of legislation was due to be 
published in November 2019 which would require all drones to be registered. 

Southampton International Airport had set up a new website which included a 
drone notification form for operations and was working to ensure safeguarding 
was in place. In addition, in collaboration with Hampshire Police, they would 
be producing ‘no fly zone’ posters for local parks. 

19. UPDATE ON MASTERPLAN

Neil Garwood, Managing Director, provided an update on the progress since 
the consultation on the Master Plan had commenced in September 2018.

Two public consultation sessions had been held and there were two further 
sessions planned; one in Bitterne Park and one at the Airport. Over 100 
members of the public had attended the sessions so far. 

In addition, a briefing was held with members of Eastleigh Borough Council 
and a live Question and Answer session was held on Twitter. 

160 consultation responses had been received on the website to date and 
73% of these were positive and 27% negative comments. The responses 
would be consolidated into key themes to enable the Airport to feedback key 7



4

commitments for the final master plan. The wider feedback through other 
channels would also be taken into account; however the website was the only 
route of submitting a formal response. The consultation period would close on 
30 October 2018. 

20. MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT

There had been no reported breaches of the agreement. 

21. TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP FEEDBACK

The minutes of the most recent meeting of the Technical Working Group were 
circulated to members with the Agenda, and were noted at the meeting.

22. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting would be held on Friday 8 February 2019 at 2pm. 

8



1 

 

 
 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
Managing Director’s Report 
February 2019 

 
1. Total Passenger Numbers – September – December 2018 
 
Between September and December 2018, Southampton Airport welcomed 639,232 passengers which was a 5.05% 
decrease on the 673,219 passengers from the same period in 2017. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

9

Agenda Item 3



2 

 

 
2. Total Aircraft Movements – September – December 2018 
 
Total Aircraft Movements include: Passenger and Cargo Flights, Training Flights, Air Ambulance, General Aviation, 
Military, Air Taxi and Positioning Flights. Between September and December 2018 there were 12,760 flights which is a 
decrease of 8.37% compared to the 13,926 flights for the same period in 2017. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



3 

 

 
3. Airport & Airline News 
 
Southampton Airport launches summer campaign 2019 

Passengers are now booking their flights to summer destinations 
such as Majorca, Menorca and Ibiza with TUI with Volotea aircraft. 
Flybe has significantly boosted frequency to its 2019 Summer 
schedule, including early selection of sun routes to Alicante, Faro 
and Malaga from Southampton as well as additional flights to Palma 
de Mallorca. 
The airport is excited to welcome back FlyLolo with an increased 
route programme to seven new exciting destinations in Greece, 
Spain, Croatia, Bulgaria and Montenegro. 
 

 
Southampton Airport welcomed back easyJet 

Southampton Airport officially launched the skiing season on 16 
December with the return of the popular route to Geneva with 
easyJet, which now operates every Tuesday, Thursday and Sunday. 
Last year more than 13,000 passengers took advantage of this flight, 
served by the Airbus A320 aircraft. 
 
 
 

 
KLM to terminate services from Southampton Airport 

Unfortunately KLM will be ceasing their route to Amsterdam from 
April 2019. The reason given by the airline is that they have not seen 
the number of connecting passengers required to make the route 
profitable, and in addition they are facing challenges from landing 
slots provision at Amsterdam Schipol Airport. We retain link to 
Amsterdam with Flybe (4 times a day) and are continuing 
discussions on backfilling the lost capacity. 
 
 
 

 
Flybe Update 

Flybe has reported (11 January) that they have been acquired 
(subject to shareholder approval) by a consortium named Connect 
Airways – formed of 40% Cyrus (US Investment Firm), 30% Stobart 
Aviation, 30% Virgin Group. This will provide Flybe with immediate 
cash injection to safeguard their short-term financial position, and 
we await news of how the new group will operate in the UK 
regional aviation sector. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

11



4 

 

Disruptive Passengers 
The airport operates in conjunction with all business partners and 
Hampshire Police to ensure that disruptive incidents remain at 
the lowest possible level. The airport and the aviation industry as 
a whole take a zero-tolerance approach to incidents that have the 
potential to impact on aviation safety – the ‘One Too Many’ 
campaign is designed to remind passengers of the severe 
consequences of disruptive behaviour at airport and on-board of 
an aircraft. We are also in the early planning stages of launching 
Campus Watch, successfully operated at Glasgow with the aim of 

launching prior to the summer season. Campus Watch operates along a similar model to Pub Watch and Shop Watch 
schemes and will delivered in partnership with Hampshire Constabulary. 
 
 
Drones 

The events at Gatwick of DATES exposed the risk of irresponsible 
drone use around airports. Southampton Airport is reviewing its 
measures to control use of drones in the vicinity of the airport and, in 
conjunction with Hampshire Police, has fully reviewed all contingency 
plans in light of the Gatwick incident. 
Southampton Airport was pleased to support Gatwick and the many 
passenger displaced by the drone incident, providing additional 
flights to ensure that the disruption could be eased as far as possible. 
The government proposes to change the law to further restrict the 
flying of drones around airports, setting out a plan to widen the 
perimeter around airports within which drones cannot be flown. 
 

4. Management and Staff 

A number of new appointments has been made at the airport in the last few months, including a new Communications 
Manager to oversee all elements of Master Plan Consultation. 
 

 
 

 
Hazel Screech celebrates 25 years 
Congratulations to Hazel Screech, who has now marked 25 years 
of working at Southampton Airport. Hazel joined our team back 
in 1993 and work very hard in a wide range of jobs, from 
Passengers Operations and HR to Customer Service - the 
department that she now proudly manages. 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

12



5 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Latest Breeze through Awards – September - December 2018 
 
Gemma Forman, ADM 

Gemma went above and beyond on her late Airport Duty Manager 
shift in September, stopping to notice a young family travelling 
struggling in the Terminal. Never one to shy away from having fun, 
Gemma was praised for her “caring, considerate and friendly nature” 
while busy entertaining the children, interacting with pilots and in 
turn giving Mum the time to relax. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Alan Howe, Swissport PRM 

Alan’s superb special assistance got nominated by the Swissport 
Station Manager, especially after one grateful family took the trouble 
to write in and thank him for his care and patience while assisting 
their daughter on a recent trip to Amsterdam. Nothing was too much 
trouble and all in a day’s work for Alan as he “completely understood 
the needs of the whole family”. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5. Vortex  
 
There were no reported occurrences of vortex damage between September and December 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



6 

 

6. Community and Charity 
 
£38k raised for Charity Partner 

Southampton Airport reached its annual fundraising target for 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Air Ambulance (HIOWAA), raising 
£38,000 for the life-saving service.   
Over the past two years, the airport has raised more than £60,000 
for the Charity; enough to keep the Air Ambulance and charity 
Critical Care Team Vehicles operational for four days, attending an 
average of six incidents a day, many of them life-saving.  
Southampton Airport has now announced its ambitious plans to 
raise a total of £100k for the life-saving Charity over the course of 
the three year partnership. 
 

 
Date’s announced for Southampton Airport’s Runway Run 

Southampton Airport has launched its official Runway Run which is 
due to take place on the airport’s runway at 5:30am on Sunday 23 
June 2019. The run is 5km in length and members of the public are 
invited to enter. Approximately 1000 people are expected to join in 
the fun, taking advantage of the unique opportunity to run along a 
real runway at daybreak.  
Runners will need to register beforehand and the entry cost is £20 
with all proceeds going to the airport’s Charity Partner, Hampshire 
and Isle of Wight Air Ambulance (HIOWAA). 

 

 

7. Online and Social Media 

Twitter 
The airport account has reached over 40k followers and has proved invaluable for providing instant updates in times of 
disruption. To follow the airport, please go to www.twitter.com/sou_airport  
 
The Managing Director has also launched a dedicated Twitter account to update people on airport and aviation sector 
development. To follow the MD, please go to  
 
Facebook 
Our Facebook page continues to grow and the number of ‘likes’ now sits at nearly 12.5k. You can access it at 
www.facebook.com/sou.airport  
 
Instagram 
Our Instagram page is rapidly gaining popularity and currently has 650 followers. You can view our Instagram page on: 
www.instagram.com/sou_airport 
 
Blog 
Our blog is live and includes plenty of hints, tips and information on our destinations and routes. You can find our Blog 
at: http://www.southamptonairport.com/blog/ 
 
 
 
 

14

http://www.twitter.com/sou_airport
http://www.facebook.com/sou.airport
http://www.instagram.com/sou_airport
http://www.southamptonairport.com/blog/


7 

 

YouTube 
Our YouTube channel is nowadays mostly used for uploading videos that then can be linked to other social media 
channels rather than a platform on its own. Currently we have over 100k views. You can watch our videos at 
www.youtube.com/SOUAirport 
 
 

7. Master Plan Update 

The Consultation on the Airport’s Draft Master Plan closed in October 2018. Four drop-in sessions were held to give 
members of public more information about the plans The engagement from the local community was high and nearly 
400 pieces of feedback were received – 62% of which were positive, showing strong support from within the local 
community for airport growth, increased choice and increased connections for passengers. 
 
The airport is now preparing to submit a planning application in late spring 2019 and continues to work closely with all 
parties to ensure the widest possible consultation and support for the future developments. A further series of public 
engagement events will be held at venues across communities surrounding our airport. 
 
 
 

Appendix A: Noise & Complaints Summary 
Supporting statistics 

 
The period of September to December 2018 and the comparison between years is as follows 

 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15

http://www.youtube.com/SOUAirport


8 

 

Appendix B: Total Aircraft Movement Supporting Statistics 
 
 

 
 

16



 

 

 

Technical Working Group 
Monday 14th January 2019 

1400 – 1530 
Spitfire Meeting Room, Terminal, Southampton Airport 

 

Present: 
Neil Garwood (NG)    Southampton International Airport Limited 
Nichola Shaw (NSh)    Southampton International Airport Limited 
Amy Le Vieux (ALV)    Southampton International Airport Limited  
Godfrey Olson (GO)    Chair of Consultative Committee 
David Airey (DA)    Eastleigh Borough Council 
Gavin Derrick (GD)    Southampton City Council 
Abby Toms (AT)    Winchester City Council 
Dan Townsend (DT)    Southampton International Airport Limited 
Nigel Spence (NS)    Southampton International Airport Limited 
 
Julie Stirling (JS) - minutes   Southampton International Airport Limited 
 
Apologies: 
There were no apologies. 
 

Description Action 
Owner 

 
Welcome and Apologies 
NG welcomed all to the forum and introductions were given around the table. No 
apologies had been received prior to the meeting. GD explained Martin Lowe will not 
be attending in future and GD would instead.  Invite to be sent to Flybe for Technical 
Working Group. 
 
Review of Previous Minutes  
The previous minutes were reviewed and no actions were incomplete or required to 
be carried forward. No further queries arose from the minutes. 
NS – will do live demonstration of noise desk at Consultative Committee. 
ALV – Emissions from different aircraft. There was nothing to add to what was 
already reported.  Would be held until air quality survey was undertaken. 
 
Airport Business Update (NG) 
NG reported that the 2 million passenger mark had been reached at end of year.  
Flybe had less movements but more people on aircraft (higher load factors).  A new 
route had opened with Flylolo with more this year.  GO queried the confidence of 
operators.  NG reported they were providing routes that were wanted and SIAL was 
giving every support.  DA noted the timing on the television advert and inability to 
read all the information.  NG acknowledged this point adding that Flylolo routes were 
a late addition and the advert did direct people to the website for more information 
 
Awards were received in 2019 for the best use of technology (drone bird-scarer) and 
for corporate social responsibility. 
 
Looking ahead 2019 – KLM announced it was pulling out of the Amsterdam route at 
the end of March.  They were not seeing connective traffic, just point to point. Time 
slots at Schipol were also challenging.  The announcement had been made that 

 
 
JS to invite 
to Flybe 
base 
captain to 
the TWG. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Flybe had been acquired by Connect Airways which was a consortium of Cyrus (US 
investment firm), Virgin and Stobart.  This gave short to medium term financial 
stability. Short haul ambitions by Virgin had been discussed, but were unknown at 
this time 
 
Regarding Brexit, a level of reassurance had been received that in a no-deal 
scenario, flying would still continue in and out of the EU.  This was good for 
confidence but there would be no growth in a no deal scenario, due to a capacity 
freeze on UK airports. The masterplan had been completed and a planning pre-
application had been submitted.  400 pieces of feedback had been received. 
 
Masterplan Update 
NG gave a brief recap.  It was planned to extend the runway within the site and 
increase employment by 50% over the next 20 years.  This allowed operators to do 
more, offering higher load factors with more seats.  Four drop-ins had been held in 
September for members of the public. With the 400 pieces of feedback, 62% were 
positive.  38% were negative and this was mainly due to concerns around noise, air 
quality and local transport infrastructure.  NG showed a postcode map demonstrating 
where the positive/negative comments had been received.  Commitments had been 
made on noise.  Outcomes of air quality surveys would be taken to the local 
community offering transparency.  There was a commitment to working with the LA’s 
road structure.  Route requests had been received even though they were not part of 
the consultation. 
 
Commitments - NS reported a noise action plan had been submitted to Defra and a 
response was awaited, hopefully by the end of January.  A noise insulation policy 
was being written with further details for the next TWG.  Noise monitoring would be 
part of an environmental impact assessment.  ALV added this was being looked at 
as a wider whole picture with more than the planning application needed.  A solid set 
of data would be given, over and above what was required which was what people 
wanted to know. 
 
Air Quality Strategy – ALV reported this was to be released this year.  It was to 
ensure Itchen Valley Park would have no negative impact.  The airport aims to 
achieve airport carbon accreditation as SIAL had demonstrated year on year 
reductions, aiming to zero emissions in the future. 
Data would be available for the public to see, being transparent and available on 
airport and planning websites.  More events for members of the public would be held. 
DA requested dates of these meetings for the consultative committee 
ALV added there would also be meetings with parish councils.  DA was surprised 
parish councils had raised this as an issue.  NG felt it was important to engage at all 
levels.  
AT - Winchester welcomed proposals but felt there was not much meat on the 
bones. 
ALV suggested parish council meetings should help to provide the community with 
more information. 
GO – it could be said the airport took into consideration people’s comments.  
DA – had received very few comments from people but they did ask about work on 
the runway and mitigation of noise.  Also the provision of information regarding when 
things were happening.  There were concerns here so detailed information should 
soon been seen. 
NG agreed to take into account these comments. 
 
Transport and road – ALV reported on the surface access strategy and how the 
modal split would change; types of transport and numbers of people in vehicles; and 
also consideration of transportation to/from the east.  An airport transport forum was 
scheduled for March 2019.  DA asked to be invited. 
AT – would there be a proposal that noise would be mitigated for increased travel?  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALV to bring  
dates of 
events  to 
Airport 
Consultative 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALV to 
invite DA to 
Airport 
Transport 
Forum 
 

18



 

 

ALV confirmed this was the case.  AT added it would be good to show different types 
of aircraft for the public to know which one was which. 
 

Noise Statistics Review (NSh) 
NSh gave a round-up of 2018.  There had been 33 noise complaints during the year 
(from 27 households).  This was roughly the same year-on-year, but a slight increase 
in Q4. 
 
 2016 2017 2018 

Jan  0 1 2 
Feb 1 0 0 
Mar 0 1 0 
Apr 0 1 4 
May 1 2 1 
Jun 4 13 3 
Jul 8 7 2 

Aug 11 4 8 
Sep 8 0 2 
Oct 5 0 4 
Nov 0 0 3 
Dec 0 0 4 
Total 38 30 33 

 

 
 

The complaint ratio was 3 on landing to the north and 8 on take-off from the north.  
15 landing to the south and 2 take-off from the south.    There had been 5 complaints 
about an engine ground run. 
 
A map had been put together as requested showing noise complaints.  These came 
from Eastleigh and scattered villages to the north – Bitterne Park to the south.  
Households provided a few more repeat complainers but NSh had talked to people 
directly wherever possible which was beneficial.  One complaint in particular came 
from Drum Road, Eastleigh (half a km west of Swan Centre).  This was off the 
airport’s flight path.  A resident had asked for details on movements and air quality.  
These were provided to her together with information on what was being done to 
mitigate.  She wished to raise disturbance by noise when working from home. 
 
NG - these were useful comments to share with this committee. Consultation events 
had previously been done on the masterplan giving many opportunities to be 
expressed directly to the airport.  AT suggested that the complainant should 
comment through the planning process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18
23

29 27

0

10

20

30

40

2015 2016 2017 2018

Number of Households

Number of Households

19



 

 

GO thought residents would have more noise from road traffic, adding it was good to 
have these comments noted. 
 
NS reported new software was now available to assist with tracking.  There 
continued to be good relationships with airlines.  He gave an overview of the year: 
 
Noise pollution had been monitored from April 2018 and a graph explained route 
deviations.  GO – why had these occurred?  NS reported one was due to weather 
and private flights. Further work would be done with Signature (general aviation) 
around noise preferred routes.  
GO felt in his view, this was a minimal number of complaints and asked did we recall 
any Vortex?  NS – there was one vortex event in 2018 which was dealt swiftly by the 
airport. 
DA – how do our noise complaints compare with airports of the same size?  NS 
suggested this could be investigated.  It could be more about where airport was 
situated (eg by communities) rather than size. This was discussed.  GD stated he 
received many complaints about noise but very little were for the airport.  More for 
noise from docks.  People were now aware there was a route to complain to so this 
may not be an indicator.  NS agreed there was a bit more of a trend since we went to 
consultation.  AT felt communities were worried about the number of flights 
increasing so it may be good to give the correct message. 
GO suggested reminding people that the airport had been here for 100 years.  NSh 
noted some people write in to see if a house is under a flight path and she can 
advise. 
 
Future of our airspace - NS showed a table of noise preferred routes. These 
depended on pilots flying the specified route, however in the future more use would 
be made of satellite navigation linked in to aircraft flight management systems.  A 
map was shown demonstrating how procedures would change through the work of 
the Future Airspace South Implementation (FASI).  SIDs (standard instrument 
departures) takes reliance off the pilot and relies instead on satellite navigation, but 
the right technology wasn’t consistently available at the moment. 
A video was shown to explain this.  NS – there was a look to more accurate 
navigation but satellite wasn’t available as yet. 
A diagram of conventional approaches was shown but also suggested satellite 
navigation approaches. Part of the proposal would be to bring in satellite navigation 
to the north which would require much consultation with different groups.  The 
technology exists to look at alternative flight routes.  NG noted that airspace changes 
can alleviate noise for people, but can take some time to deliver due to CAA 
regulations. 
 
Drones Update (NSh) 
Drones had been very much in public eye recently but we have done substantial 
work.  In 2018 there were three reported sightings of drones from pilots.  This was 
relatively low compared to other airports around the UK.  We now have a good 
process in place for drone operators and were seeing applications for drone flying.  
Work had also been undertaken with Hampshire police on contingency plans should 
there be disruption from drone activity.  Work was also being done with drone 
detection companies. 
 
The Government announced it would extend the space around aerodromes within 
which drones can be operated.  There was now a substantial area around the airport, 
so there would be increased applications for permission but this would give us more 
information on those who operate.  GO felt this was not our responsibility.  NSh was 
working with safeguarded surface areas.  Much good work was being done with 
drones, but this gave us reassurance and operators contact details.  In the main, 
operators have CAA licences and have undertaken much training.  New laws must 
be highlighted but were not yet published.  Our website gives more information on 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NS to 
investigate 
noise 
complaints 
at similar 
airports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

20



 

 

responsible drone use. DA – do we work with British Transport Police due to close 
proximity of the railway and inform them what’s going on?  
NSh was unsure but agreed to check.  GO asked if the consultative committee would 
be advised?  This was confirmed. 
 
Agenda Items for Consultative Committee Meeting on Friday 8th February 2019 
Masterplan 
Airspace including video 
Drones – MD’s update 
Update on planning application 
Consultation event dates 
MD’s report as usual (stats) 
 
Any Other Business 
There was no other business.  
 
GO gave apologies for the next meeting. 
 

NSh to 
check on 
liaison work 
with British 
Transport 
Police re 
drones. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

Monday 13th May 2019 
1400 – 1530  

Spitfire Room, Southampton Airport 
 

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	3 Airport Managing Director's Report
	6 Technical Working Group feedback

